
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor
Monday, December 7, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 

Page 1 of 1 

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Invocation and Pledge
4. Announcements
5. Approval of the Agenda
6. Public Input
7. Consent Agenda

a. Approve Minutes
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held November 16, 2020
• Executive Session held November 16, 2020
• Special Called Joint Meeting held November 17, 2020
• Executive Session held November 17, 2020

b. Approve 2021 Edmunds GovTech Software Maintenance Agreement
c. Approve 2021 Equipment Lease Agreements for Printers
d. Approve 2021 Staff Appointments
e. Approve 2021 Renewal of Professional Services
f. Approve 2021 Mayor and Council Board Designations and Compensation
g. Approve 2021 Agreement with Municipal Court Judge
h. Approve GMA Safety and Liability Management Grant

  BUSINESS 

8. FY 2019-2020 Audit Presentation and Approval
9. Review of City Leases

10. Renewal of Vape Licenses
11. DDA Recommendation for Grant Disbursement

 EXECUTIVE SESSION IF NEEDED:  Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or Personnel 
 ADJOURNMENT   

The next scheduled City Council meeting is December 21, 2020 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk 
at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held November 16, 2020 
• Executive Session held November 16, 2020 
• Special Called Joint Meeting held November 17, 2020 
• Executive Session held November 17, 2020 

b. Approve 2021 Edmunds GovTech Software Maintenance Agreement 
c. Approve 2021 Equipment Lease Agreements for Printers 
d. Approve 2021 Staff Appointments 
e. Approve 2021 Renewal of Professional Services 
f. Approve 2021 Mayor and Council Board Designations and Compensation 
g. Approve 2021 Agreement with Municipal Court Judge  
h. Approve GMA Safety and Liability Management Grant 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD NOVEMBER 16, 2020 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD NOVEMBER 16, 2020 
• SPECIAL CALLED JOINT MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD NOVEMBER 17, 2020 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 16, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Mike Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Stephen Tolson, City Attorneys Dana Miles, Kevin 
Tallant and Jonah Howell, City Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works 
Director Trampas Hansard, Planning Director David Picklesimer, Finance Administrator Hayden 
Wiggins, Human Resource Manager Donna Blanton and Utilities Crew Chief Jacob Barr.   
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember Walden. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason announced the City Council will meet jointly with the Dawson 
County Board of Commissioners on 11/17/2020 to discuss SPLOST VII. 

 

Mayor Eason announced there will be a small reception after the meeting for Gary Barr’s 
retirement.  
 

Mayor Eason announced the FY 2020 audit presentation will occur in December this year instead 
of November due to delays related to COVID. 
 

Mayor Eason announced the annual tree lighting and parade will be held on Friday, December 4, 
2020. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by S. Tolson; 
second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  No comments from the public.   

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a, b) made 
by S. Tolson; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held November 2, 2020 
• Executive Session held November 2, 2020 

b. Approve 2021 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) Approve acceptance of 
the grant for $32,849.72 and the City’s 30% match of $9,854.92 to mill, pave and stripe 
Memory Lane and to rollover the funds into FY 2022 to combine two years of LMIG 
funding to fund this project. 

 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGINITION:  City Manager Bolz introduced the new utilities employee, Kyle 
Richardson.  Mayor and Council welcomed him to the City.   
 

Mayor and Council recognized Gary Barr’s 30 years of service with the City and presented him 
with a plaque.  They also congratulated him on his retirement from the City. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

9. ANX C2100043 and  ZA C2100043: Allen Street Properties LLC and B & K Turner Family LLP 
have petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 74.865 acre tract known as a portion 
of TMP 090 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County Zoning of 
RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family 
Residential).  Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 14, 2020 and November 
9, 2020.  City Council on November 16, 2020.  City Council for a decision on December 7, 2020. 
Postponed from September 14, 2020 until November 9, 2020 
 

Planning Director Picklesimer confirmed that the applicant will be submitting an amendment to 
their application and Mayor Eason requested the item be postponed until January.  He recognizes 
the public is here to speak and will allow them time to be heard this evening 
 

Motion to schedule a regular meeting of the City Council on January 19, 2021 at 5:00 pm and 
postpone this request to January 19, 2021 at 5:00 pm made by S. Tolson; second by J. Walden.  
Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 16, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  
 

Planning Director Picklesimer read the annexation and rezone request.  Mike Turner, the applicant 
stated he would prefer to speak once he has heard from the opposing side. 
 

The following residents spoke in opposition to the request: 
 

• Tim and Liz Murdock, 15 Turner Drive, Dawsonville – They stated they will withhold their 
comments for the January 19, 2021 meeting.  

• Michelle Hout, 61 Turner Drive, Dawsonville – She also stated she will withhold her 
comments until the January 19, 2021 meeting. 

 

                  Motion to close the public hearing made by M. French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.   

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

10. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz reported on an administrative variance 
approved by Planning Director Picklesimer at 32 Flowing Trail.  He also reported to Council the 
monthly leak adjustment report totaling $51.77 

 

11. HAYDEN WIGGINS, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances 
and activity provided through October 31, 2020.  Hayden also reported the LOST and SPLOST 
revenue is currently ten percent higher than last year.  
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:   
 

At 5:17 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for pending or potential 
litigation and personnel was made by C. Phillips; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor. 
 

At 5:27 p.m. a motion to close executive session and resume regular session was made by S. 
Tolson; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

BUSINESS  
 

Motion to amend the agenda to add item #12 Appoint a City Solicitor made by C. Phillips; second 
by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

Motion to approve agenda as amended made by S. Tolson; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  

 

12. Motion to appoint Jonah Howell as the City’s Solicitor which will be funded out of the FY 2021 
General Fund Budget made by S. Tolson; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 5:32 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by M. French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

 

By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 16, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
    
   ___________________________________ 
   Stephen Tolson, Councilmember Post 2 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
    
 
 
Attested: _________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 





DAWSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND  
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL CALLED JOINT MEETING AGENDA – TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
DAWSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT CENTER ASSEMBLY ROOM 

25 JUSTICE WAY, DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 30534 
10:00 AM 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

DC Board of Commissioners Chairman Billy Thurmond called the meeting to order at 10:00 am. 
 

A. ROLL CALL:   
 

Present were District 1 Commissioner Sharon Fausett, District 2 Commissioner Chris Gaines, District 
3 Commissioner Tim Satterfield, District 4 Commissioner Julie Hughes Nix.  Also present were County 
Manager David Headley, County Attorney Sam Van Volkenburgh and County Clerk Kristen Cloud. 
 

City of Dawsonville Mayor Mike Eason called roll and present were Post 1 Councilmember Caleb 
Phillips, Post 2 Councilmember Stephen Tolson, Post 3 Councilmember John Walden, and Post 4 
Councilmember Mark French.   Also present were City Manager Bob Bolz, City Attorneys Dana Miles 
and Paul Mitchell and City Clerk Beverly Banister.   
 

B.  INVOCATION:  Invocation led by Chairman Billy Thurmond. 
 

C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pledge led by Chairman Billy Thurmond.   
 

D.  ANNOUNCEMENTS:   
 

Mayor Mike Eason announced the City Council will reconvene at City Hall once the joint meeting is 
adjourned. 

 

E.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA:          

      Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by Commissioner Fausett; second by Commissioner 
Satterfield.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.    

      Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by Councilmember Tolson; second by 
Councilmember Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.       
 

F.  PUBLIC COMMENT:   
 

• Hugh Stowers Jr., Dawsonville, GA – He stated the importance of this meeting and would like 
to see more joint meetings with the City and the County working together.  He further stated he 
wants Dawson County citizens to understand approving the Special Purpose Local Option 
Sales Tax (SPLOST) will keep their property taxes down explaining most of the tax is paid by 
visitors coming into Dawson County. 
 

G.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

      1.  Proposed Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Discussion 
              a.  Allocation of Tax Proceeds   

 

 Chairman Thurmond provided an overview of SPLOST.  County Attorney Van Volkenburgh 
proposed a timeline to offer a SPLOST VII referendum on the March 16, 2021 ballot.  Mayor 
Eason and Chairman Thurmond said some members of the City Council and Board of 
Commissioners have met regarding SPLOST VII, specifically as it relates to the allocation of 
tax proceeds.   

 

              b.  Possible Projects for Inclusion in the Referendum 
 

City Manager Bolz read aloud a comprehensive list of possible projects for inclusion in the 
referendum on behalf of the City of Dawsonville.  Dawson County SPLOST Administrator David 
McKee read aloud a comprehensive list of possible projects for inclusion in the referendum on 
behalf of the County.  Brief discussion among the Council and Board regarding the project lists 
of both the County and City.  Public safety concerns were at the core of the discussion.  

 

              c.  Consider SPLOST Intergovernmental Agreement  
 

Chairman Thurmond stated the members of both the City Council and Board of Commissioners 
will continue to work towards the IGA and allocation proceeds in accordance with the proposed 
timeline to allow time for the citizens to review and understand it to make an educated vote. 



DAWSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND  
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL CALLED JOINT MEETING AGENDA – TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
DAWSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT CENTER ASSEMBLY ROOM 

25 JUSTICE WAY, DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 30534 
10:00 AM 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
G.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

      At 11:02 am Chairman Thurmond adjourned the meeting for the Board of Commissioners.  
 

At 11:02 a.m. a motion to adjourn the joint meeting and reconvene the City’s meeting at Dawsonville 
City Hall in approximately 15 minutes was made by Councilmember Phillips; second by 
Councilmember Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 
 
At 11:23 am Mayor Eason reconvened the meeting at City Hall in the G.L. Gilleland Council 
Chambers.  All members of the City Council were present.  
 

Motion to amend the agenda to add an Executive Session was made by S. Tolson; second by J. 
Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended made by M. French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.   

 

   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

At 11:25 a.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for pending or 
potential litigation was made by J. Walden; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

At 11:51 a.m. a motion to close executive session and resume regular session was made by M. 
French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

  ADJOURNMENT 
 

At 11:55 a.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  
 
 
 

By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor  
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
    
   ___________________________________ 
   Stephen Tolson, Councilmember Post 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DAWSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND  
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL CALLED JOINT MEETING AGENDA – TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
DAWSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT CENTER ASSEMBLY ROOM 

25 JUSTICE WAY, DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 30534 
10:00 AM 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
  
   
 
 
Attested: ________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:     APPROVE 2020 EDMUNDS GOVTECH SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT            
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other ________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
   TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF EDMUNDS GOVTECH YEARLY SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,345.00 TO BE PAID OUT OF THE GENERAL/ENTERPRISE 
FY2021 BUDGET 

   
 JANUARY 1, 2021 – DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• CITY HAS USED THE SOFTWARE SINCE 2015 
 

• SOFTWARE INCLUDES ACCOUNTING, UTILITIES, PLANNING & ZONING AND ONLINE/PHONE 
BILL PAY 

     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Beverly Banister, City Clerk____________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM #    7b     
 

 

 















                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE 2021 EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PRINTERS  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO APPROVE RENEWAL OF PRINTER LEASES FOR JANUARY 1, 2021 TO DECEMBER 31, 
2021  

 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• FORTY-EIGHT MONTH LEASES FOR (2) MULTIFUNCTION PRINTERS AND (1) LARGE 
FORMAT PRINTER REQUIRING YEARLY RENEWAL  

 

• LEASES ALREADY PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY COUNCIL AND LEGAL 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7c    
 

 

 



















                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE 2021 STAFF APPOINTMENTS    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE 2021 STAFF APPOINTMENTS (SEE ATTACHED) 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:  Mike Eason, Mayor    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM #   7d      
 

 

 



                                                                             
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Dawsonville City Council 
 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Mike Eason, Mayor  Robert Bolz 
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post #1 415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 City Manager 
Steve Tolson,  Councilmember Post #2 Dawsonville, GA  30534  
John Walden,   Councilmember Post #3 Office (706) 265-3256       Fax (706) 265-4214  Beverly Banister 
Mark French,   Councilmember Post #4 www.dawsonville-ga.gov City Clerk 

 
 
                                                                  

                        City of Dawsonville Staff Appointments for 2021 
 

  

• City Manager – Bob Bolz 

• City Clerk – Beverly Banister 

• Municipal Court Clerk – Beverly Banister 

• Deputy City Clerk – Tracy Smith 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.dawsonville-ga.gov/


                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    APPROVE 2021 RENEWAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

     TO APPROVE RENEWAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR 2021  
      
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
   SEE ATTACHED LIST 
    
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
      
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Mike Eason, Mayor _____________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7e     
 

 

 



                                                                             
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Dawsonville City Council 
 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Mike Eason, Mayor  Robert Bolz 
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post #1 415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 City Manager 
Steve Tolson,  Councilmember Post #2 Dawsonville, GA  30534  
John Walden,   Councilmember Post #3 Office (706) 265-3256       Fax (706) 265-4214  Beverly Banister 
Mark French,  Councilmember Post #4 www.dawsonville-ga.gov City Clerk 

 
 
                                                                  

City of Dawsonville Professional Services for 2021 
 

• City Attorney –Miles Hansford & Tallant, LLC 

• Auditor- Alexander, Almand and Bangs, LLP  

• Engineer – G. Ben Turnipseed Engineers, Inc. 

• Municipal Court Judge – Ron Reemsnyder 

• City Solicitor – Jonah Howell 

• Testing of Wastewater – Environmental Management Services 

• Geologist – Bob Atkins 

• Repair-Installation Water-Sewer Infrastructure – Townley Construction 

• Airport Consultant Engineering Services – Lead Edge Design Group 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.dawsonville-ga.gov/


                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT: APPROVE 2021 MAYOR & COUNCIL BOARD DESIGNATIONS AND COMPENSATION                 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE BOARD DESIGNATIONS FOR THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL FOR 2021 
     AND TO AUTHORIZE APPROVAL FOR PAYMENT OF ONE MEETING PER MONTH AS 
     DESIGNATED WHEN ATTENDED 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:   
 
  
     SEE ATTACHED  
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
     APPROVE, AMEND OR TABLE  
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
     
 
 

      
 
 
REQUESTED BY:   Mike Eason, Mayor    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     7f     
 

 

 



                                                                             
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Dawsonville City Council 
 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Mike Eason, Mayor  Robert Bolz 
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post #1 415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 City Manager 
Steve Tolson,  Councilmember Post #2 Dawsonville, GA  30534  
John Walden,   Councilmember Post #3 Office (706) 265-3256       Fax (706) 265-4214  Beverly Banister 
Mark French,  Councilmember Post #4 www.dawsonville-ga.gov City Clerk 

 
 
                                                                  

Mayor and Council Members Board Designations for 2021 

 

o Planning Commission – Caleb Phillips 
 

o Historic Preservation Commission – Mark French 
 

o Downtown Development Authority – Stephen Tolson 
 

o Family Connection – John Walden 
 

o Board of Health – Mark French 
 

o Animal Control Board – Caleb Phillips 
 

o Chamber of Commerce – Mayor or Mayor Pro-Tem 
 

o Dawsonville History Museum – Mayor 
 

o GMA – Mayor or Mayor Pro-Tem 
 

o GMRC – Mayor or Mayor Pro-Tem 
 

 

 

 

Recommend authorization to approve payment of one meeting per month as designated 
when attended. 

 

http://www.dawsonville-ga.gov/


                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT: APPROVE 2021 AGREEMENT WITH MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE                 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE RONALD REEMSNYDER 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:   
 
  
      
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
     APPROVE, AMEND OR TABLE  
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
     
 
 

      
 
 
REQUESTED BY:   Dana Miles, City Attorney    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     7g     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE RON REEMSNYDER 

 
This Agreement by and between the City of Dawsonville, a Georgia  municipal 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as the “City,” and Ronald D. Reemsnyder, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Municipal Court Judge” or “Judge”, is as follows: 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has appointed Ronald D. Reemsnyder to serve as Judge 
of the City’s Municipal Court through an Independent Contractor Service Agreement and 
not as a City employee; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ronald D. Reemsnyder has accepted the appointment and confirmation and 
desires to enter into this Agreement with the City to provide services to the City as Judge; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ronald D. Reemsnyder understands this Agreement involves overseeing 
part-time court staff, who are employees of the City; and, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, conditions and terms 
contained herein, the City and Ronald D. Reemsnyder agree as follows: 

 
1. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: 

 
This Agreement does not create and shall not be construed to create an employee, 
representative, joint venture, or partnership relationship between the City and the Judge. 
Neither Party is an agent of the other Party for any purpose. Accordingly: 
 
Judge shall provide Services as an independent contractor, and Judge shall not be 
considered an employee of the City for any purpose; 
 
Judge, and Judge’s agents and subcontractors, including, but not limited to any Judges 
Pro Tempore, shall not be entitled to, and shall not receive from City in connection with 
Services any workers’ compensation coverage, insurance coverage, pension, profit sharing, 
paid vacation, sick leave disability or similar benefit normally provided by City to its 
employees, except as expressly provided under the Benefits section below; 
 
Judge retains sole and exclusive liability and shall withhold and/or pay all taxes and 
contributions required to be withheld and/or paid under federal and state income tax 
laws, unemployment compensation acts, social security acts, and all other legislation 
requiring employer contributions or withholdings, with respect to all Services provided 
hereunder, in a timely manner; 
 
Judge is solely responsible for paying his own business expenses, and expenses will only be 
reimbursed as set forth in this Agreement; and 
 



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Judge is free to perform services for any other client that does not create a conflict of interest 
to his service to the City. 
 
At all times during the term of this Agreement, neither party will function as or represent 
itself to be the other party or its agent, and no officer, employee, or agent of one party shall 
hold himself or herself out to be an officer, employee, or agent of the other party. 
 

2. TERM OF APPOINTMENT: 

Ronald D. Reemsnyder accepts the appointment of Judge of the Municipal Court of 
the City in accordance with the provisions of the City Char ter  and  Ordinances as 
supplemented by this Agreement for a term commencing upon execution of this Agreement 
and terminating on December 31, 2021 unless earlier terminated as described below. 

The Judge shall be, and remain, an attorney admitted to practice law in the State of Georgia. 
The Judge must also be a citizen of the United States of America and the State of 
Georgia. The Judge must comply with all other requirements for service as a 
municipal court judge, including but not limited to complying with all training 
requirements. The Judge shall immediately report to the City Council any change 
affecting his membership in good standing in the Georgia Bar Association and any 
training deficiencies. 

 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

 
The Judge shall perform all duties legally prescribed for a judicial officer serving as a 
Judge of a lawfully constituted Municipal Court according to the requirements of the 
Georgia Constitution, the Official Code of Georgia, the Code of Judicial Conduct, the 
Uniform Rules of Municipal Courts of the State of Georgia and such other rules as may 
be prescribed by the Supreme Court of the State of Georgia. In addition, the Judge shall 
act in accordance with any published opinions of the Judicial Qualifying Committee and 
the terms of any applicable Judicial Emergency Order. The Judge shall preside over all 
pre-trial conferences, cases, trials, and hearings or arrange for a Judge Pro Tempore to 
do so. The Judge also shall perform the duties described in section 4. 
 
The Judge shall at all times faithfully and to the best of his ability administer activities 
of the court, assign and hear all cases and fulfill obligations of the Court as established 
by State or local law, rule, statute, regulation and City ordinance. 
 
The Judge shall appoint Judges Pro Tempore for vacation, affidavits of prejudice, recusal 
from a pending case, illness and required judicial continuing education and training. 
Before appointing a Judge Pro Tempore, the Judge shall confirm that he or she is an 
attorney admitted to practice law in the State of Georgia, a member in good standing with the 
Georgia Bar Association, and current in all training requirements. The Judge may appoint 
only Judges Pro Tempore who have been approved by the City Council to serve as Judges 
Pro Tempore. 
 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

The Judge shall instruct all Judges Pro Tempore concerning procedures and customary 
sentences in order to promote uniformity to the greatest extent possible, and shall provide a 
copy of this Agreement to the Judges Pro Tempore and obtain their agreement to 
comply with applicable terms during the Judge’s absence. 

 
4. JUDICIAL INDEPENDENCE AND ADMINISTRATION: 

The Judge and all Judges Pro Tempore are independent from the City when performing 
judicial responsibilities and nothing contained herein shall be construed to interfere with 
a judge when performing judicial duties. The Judge, or any Judge Pro Tempore serving 
in the absence of the Judge, is solely responsible for judicial decisions. Judicial decisions 
include, but are not limited to, establishment of a standard bail schedule if the judge deems 
appropriate, establishment of a standard fine schedule for use with violations that do 
not require court appearances, determination of fines and punishment in individual 
cases, determination of bail in individual cases, establishment of standing orders 
regarding offenses for which cash bail is not required, determination of financial ability, 
determination of conditions of probation, determination of liability, and determination of 
eligibility for indigent defense and for alternatives to monetary penalties including 
community service and penalty or fine reductions. 

Furthermore, the Judge is responsible for doing the following: 

• in coordination with the City Attorney and the Court Clerk approving court 
forms and procedures necessary for the proper exercise of constitutional rights and 
other compliance with the law, and updating such forms and  procedures as 
necessary 

• in coordination with the City Attorney and the Court Clerk providing proper 
training of court staff and officials subject to the Judge’s direction and control about 
court procedures and the use of approved court forms, and updating such training 
as necessary 

• ensuring that court staff and officials subject to the Judge’s direction and 
control use approved forms, follow approved procedures and comply with 
applicable provisions of the Code of Judicial Conduct, court rules, ordinances and 
statutes 

• notifying the City Council of any Judicial Emergency Orders and any actions 
required to comply with such Orders, including, but not limited to actions that 
impact remote technology needs, city buildings, and city staff 

• notifying the City Council of additional resources necessary to ensure compliance 
with applicable laws and rules 

• notifying the City Council of service provider performance deficiencies 
• reviewing quarterly reports and other communications of the Georgia Department 

of Community Supervision Misdemeanor Probation Oversight program and 
taking any actions the Judge deems necessary or appropriate 



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 The Court Clerk shall be appointed by the City Council and shall serve as an At-Will 
employee of the City. The Court Clerk and all court staff other than the Judge are City 
employees subject to City rules and regulations. However, they are subject to the Judge’s 
direction and control when performing duties for the court. Their salaries, benefits, hours 
of work and working conditions shall be established by the City. 

The Judge understands that court staff adhere to the same applicable personnel policies as 
other City employees. The Parties agree that the Judge will participate in the review and 
amendment of any such policies to ensure that they recognize the unique nature of court 
employment and the Judge’s responsibilities with respect to court employees. The Judge 
acknowledges the Court Clerk may perform other duties for the City that are not in 
conflict with the separation of powers. 

The Judge will confer with the City Manager to coordinate administrative activities 
concerning City procedures, policies and the budget in an effort to retain and insure 
consistency and common practices throughout the City. 

5. COMPENSATION: 

The Judge’s compensation for Services is set forth below: 
The Judge will be paid a per diem of $200 per day for all court hearing dates, training dates 
or other required days of work regardless of the number of hours worked each day. 
All required training and costs for associated travel shall be reimbursed by the City in 
accordance with the City’s reimbursement protocols and applicable law.  
The Judge’s compensation may be increased, but not decreased, during the Judge’s 
term of office. 
The Judge’s compensation shall be determined annually on January 1. This salary shall 
constitute compensation for all responsibilities and duties in the administration of the 
Municipal Court. 
Any Judge Pro Tempore will be paid a per diem of $200 per day for court hearing dates 
regardless of the number of hours worked.  Judges Pro Tempore shall not be entitled to 
any training costs or compensation or other benefits or payments from the City. 

 
6. METHOD OF PAYMENT: 

 
The Judge, or any Judge Pro Tempore, shall send invoices to the City Manager and 
payment will be made within 30 days or less. 

 
7. BENEFITS: 

 
The Judge is not eligible for any benefits offered by the City to employees. 
 

8. TERM OF AGREEMENT and RENEWAL: 



Page 5 of 6 
 

The Judge’s term of office and the term of this Agreement shall be for a period beginning 
upon the execution of this Agreement and ending on December 31, 2021 unless renewed by 
action of the City Council for successive one-year terms prior to December 31 of each year 
for the upcoming year. 

 
9. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION: 

 
This Agreement shall be administered by the City Manager. Any written notices to be 
served on either party shall be served or mailed to the following addresses, with a copy 
by email: 
 
IF TO THE CITY:   IF TO THE JUDGE: 
 
Bob Bolz, City Manager  Ronald D. Reemsnyder    
City of Dawsonville   Mozley, Finlayson and Loggins 
415 Hwy. 53 East   1050 Crown Pointe Parkway 
Suite 100    Suite 1500 
Dawsonville, GA 30534  Atlanta, GA 30338 
citymanager@dawsonville-ga.gov rreemsnyder@mfllaw.com 
  

10. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT: 

This Agreement may be terminated during the Judge’s term of office as follows: 

 By the Judge if he provides a minimum of 30 days written notice prior to his 
effective date of termination, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the parties. 

 By the City only as provided in O.C.G.A. Section 36-32-2.2. 

11. MERGER AND AMENDMENT: 

This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the City and the Judge with respect 
to the matters set forth herein, and any prior or contemporaneous understandings are 
merged herein. This Agreement shall not be modified except by written instruments 
executed by the City and Judge hereto. 

This Agreement shall be governed under the laws of the State of Georgia, and any 
dispute regarding this Agreement shall be resolved in Dawson County Superior Court, 
State of Georgia. 

 
12. SEVERABILITY 

 
If any provision of this Agreement or their application to any circumstance is held invalid, 
the remainder of this Agreement and their application to other circumstances is not 
affected. 

 
 

 



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto do hereby execute this Agreement. 
 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 
 
 
By:  By:   
 Mike Eason, Mayor      Ronald D. Reemsnyder 
 
 
Date:  Date:   
 
 
Attest:  
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Beverly Banister, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 

 
Dana B. Miles, City Attorney 
 
 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE GMA SAFETY AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT GRANT  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    TO APPROVE THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE GMA SAFETY AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT GRANT IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $5109.83 AS APPROVED BY LGRMS  

   
 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:  
 
    On 10/21/2020 the GMA Safety and Liability Management Grant Program Application was submitted to 

LGRMS for the following items:  
 

• Fall Protection System to help reduce injury by protecting field staff from falls.  Will also reduce impact 
forces on body, tripod designed to withstand 5000 lbs. of vertical load.  $1850.00 

• Streamlight Strion DS HL Rechargeable Flashlight for field staff to use during bad weather and/or 
emergency situations to have proper lighting. $147.99 

• Tracer 6TIR Grille and Surface Mount for field vehicles so that the public will be aware of city vehicle 
and staff safety. 4 @ total of $111.84 

• R2 Minidome Camera w/Enterprise subscription and Ubiquiti UniFi Cloud Key Gen 2 plus- security 
Gateway with Ubiquiti UniFi switch 8 60W power and CAT5E for 2-NANO BEAMS and 3-IP Cameras  
for Wallace Park and Cemetery due to liability of City property with the park being vandalized on four 
separate occasions.  This is for the safety for the staff and public.  $3190.00              

     
 

OPTION 
 
APPROVE OR DENY 
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Donna Blanton, Human Resource Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7h     
 

 

 



1

Beverly Banister

Subject: FW: Congratulations on the Approval of Your 2020 GMA Safety Grant:  City of 
Dawsonville 20-41

   

From: Dan Beck <dbeck@lgrms.com>  
Sent: Monday, November 30, 2020 2:33 PM 
To: Donna Blanton <grants@dawsonville-ga.gov> 
Subject: RE: Congratulations on the Approval of Your 2020 GMA Safety Grant: City of Dawsonville 20-41 
 
I made that change and below are your new totals.   
 
City of Dawsonville for $2,109.83 from the WCSIF Grant Fund and $3,000 from the GIRMA fund.    
 
 
 

 

 
Dan Beck 

Director, Local Government Risk Management Services 

Office: 678-686-6280 Cell: 404-558-1874 Fax: 678-686-6380 

  

     

www.lgrms.com  

    

  
  

  

READER ADVISORY NOTICE: This information is intended only for the individual named above. If you received this in 
error, please call 678-686-6279 to notify the sender, and then delete the email without printing, copying or 
retransmitting it. In addition, be advised that Georgia has a very broad open records law and that your email 
communications may be subject to public disclosure.  
_ 

bbanister
Highlight



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:   FY 2019-2020 AUDIT PRESENTATION AND APPROVAL                   
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
      TO PRESENT THE FINANCIAL AUDIT FOR FY 2019-2020 BY BRYAN ST. PIERRE FROM 

ALEXANDER, ALMAND & BANGS 
 
     TO APPROVE THE FY 2019-2020 AUDIT AS PRESENTED 
  
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
  
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
        
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   Bob Bolz, City Manager_______________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8   
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   REVIEW OF CITY LEASES  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO DISCUSS RENEWAL OF 2021 CITY PROPERTY LEASES 
 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSUEM, CURRENT LEASES EXPIRES 12/31/2020 
• DAWSONVILLE MOONSHINE DISTILERRY, CURRENT LEASES EXPIRES 12/31/2020 
• 224 FLAT CREEK DRIVE (RESIDENCE), CURRENT LEASE EXPIRES 04/30/2021 

             

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9     
 

 

 























































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   DDA RECOMMENDATION FOR GRANT DISBURSEMENT  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  12/07/2020    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DDA RECOMMENDATION TO PAY OUT AWARDED GRANT 
FUNDS IN TWO PAYMENTS TO THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 

 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• GRANT AWARDED IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,000 ON 08/27/2020 TO THE DAWSONVILLE 
HISTORY MUSEUM FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A CHASE ELLIOTT DISPLAY AND THE 
WIDENING OF THE BACK GLASS DOORS IN THE MUSEUM FOR A FUTURE AUCTION AND 
MOVING CARS IN AND OUT OF THE MUSEUM 

• DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM REQUESTED TWO DISBURSEMENTS OF THE GRANT 
FUNDS BECAUSE THEIR ACCOUNT CANNOT ABSORB THE ENTIRE COST OF THE DISPLAY 
AS ITS BEING BUILT.  

• GRANT GUIDELINES (ORIGINALLY APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL) DICTATE FUNDING 
IS DISBURSED ONCE THE PROJECT IS COMPLETE 

• AT THE 11/23/2020 REGULAR MEETING, DDA HAS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDED TO THE 
CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE THE TWO PAYMENTS OF THE GRANT FUNDS      

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
   
    APPROVE, AMEND OR DENY 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Stephen Tolson, City Councilmember ______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    11    
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Downtown Development Authority:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Keith Stone, Chairperson Dwight Gilleland
Kevin Hammond, Vice Chairperson 415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 Marsha Martel 
Tasha Howell, Treasurer Dawsonville, GA  30534 Stephen Tolson 
Jamie McCracken Office (706) 265-3256       Fax (706) 265-4214

www.dawsonville-ga.gov

Dawsonville Downtown Development Authority Grant Checklist

The following items MUST be adhered to and submitted with your application  
BEFORE your request will be considered. 

o Business must be located within the Dawsonville Downtown Development Area 
Is the location inside the Historic District?  ____ yes ____ no

If yes, prior approval may be required from Historic Preservation Commission

o Proof of Corporate Status (Secretary of State) 

o Proof of Business License (City of Dawsonville) 

o Background check from Dawson County Sheriff’s Office 

o Fee $50.00 (check made payable to DDA) 

o Two (2) Project Cost Estimates 
 
 
 

Estimated project start date: ______________________
 *Project must commence within sixty (60) days of the grant award 

Estimated project completion date: ________________ 
 *Project must be completed within one (1) year of commencement 

The following items MUST be completed prior to grant disbursement. 
 

o Project as submitted must be 100% complete. 
 

o Inspection of completed project by DDA member to their satisfaction. 

o Submission of paid itemized invoices reflecting project work and cost. 



Page 1 of 6 
 

DAWSONVILLE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT PROJECT GRANT 
FUND GUIDELINES AND APPLICATION PACKET 

 
The Downtown Development Project Grant Fund was created by the City of Dawsonville, Georgia 
in order for the Dawsonville Downtown Development Authority (“DDA”) to award grants for 
Projects that promote the development of trade, commerce, industry, and employment 
opportunities within the Dawsonville Downtown Development Area. 
 

GRANT AMOUNTS AND GUIDELINES 
Subject to budgeted funds, there is no pre-determined amount for grant awards.  Instead, the
applicant is to provide in the written application a description of the proposed Project including
itemized estimated costs of the Project and a description of how the Project will benefit the citizens 
of the City of Dawsonville and fulfill the established guidelines set forth herein.  Amounts of 
awards are subject to current budget funds available for the program.  Awards will not be disbursed 
until the Project is complete and itemized invoices or other evidence of Project completion is 
submitted to the satisfaction of the DDA following inspection of the completed Project by the 
DDA or its designee.  Awards will be made in an estimated amount, but only disbursed to the 
extent of actual cost incurred or the amount of the award, whichever is less.  For example, a grant 
award is made for an estimated amount of $5,000, but the actual Project construction costs $4,824 
would result in disbursement of $4,824.  By way of further example, if the grant award is made 
for an estimated amount of $5,000 and the actual Project construction costs $5,824, the 
disbursement would be $5,000.  Further guidelines include: 
 

1. Each grant award must promote the development of trade, commerce, industry, and 
employment opportunities in the downtown development area;

2. Each Project for which a grant is awarded must meet the following definition of “Project”:  
The acquisition, construction, installation, modification, renovation, or rehabilitation of 
land, interests in land, buildings, structures, facilities, or other improvements located or to 
be located within the downtown development area, or other improvement for the essential 
public purpose of the development of trade, commerce, industry, and employment 
opportunities in the Dawsonville Downtown Development Area;

3. The Project must be within the Dawsonville Downtown Development Area;
4. Any Project within the Dawsonville Historic District must receive the prior approval of the 

Dawsonville Historic Preservation Commission as a pre-condition to any grant award.
5. The amount of the grant will be determined by the DDA based on the information provided 

in the Application, the funds available, and the number of requests under consideration; 
6. Eligible applicants are Downtown Development Area commercial property owners, as well 

as business owners (with the property owner’s permission);
7. Projects funded with grants must commence within sixty (60) days of the grant award and 

must be completed within one (1) year of commencement in order to be eligible for grant 
disbursement.  If a Project is not in compliance with the requisite timeframe, the grant 
award will lapse and the applicant shall not be entitled to any funds; 

8. All property taxes, licenses and permits must be current at all times during the applicant 
period and up until completion of the Project;



Page 2 of 6 
 

9. Grant applicants are fully responsible for all aspects of the Project, including any 
relationships between contractors and supplies and securing all necessary permits and 
approvals.  Grant applicants that are entities shall provide proof of corporate status along 
with their application (such as a print out of good standing from the Georgia Secretary of 
State). 

10. Grant applicants or their principal(s) shall consent to a background check by the Dawson 
County Sheriff’s Office at the expense of the applicant.  No grant award may be made to 
any applicant or entity managed by an applicant that has a felony conviction or a 
misdemeanor conviction of high and aggravating circumstances. 

11. The grant application fee shall be $50.00.  The DDA will use the application fee to fund 
the cost of completed Project inspections prior to disbursement of funds and such other 
administrative costs of the DDA as arise in the Grant process.  

12. Each grant application shall be accompanied by at least 2 estimates of Project costs from 
individuals or entities independent of the Applicant.

13. The most important factor in granting awards considered by the DDA shall be the number 
and type of jobs that will be created by the Project. Within that consideration, priority shall 
be granted to Projects creating higher income jobs over those creating lower income jobs. 

14. As a general rule and subject to modification on a case by case basis for substantial 
reason(s), Projects to expand established businesses and their employment opportunities 
shall be favored over Projects for start up businesses and their employment opportunities. 

15. The DDA may issue a matching grant for any Project whereby the Applicant would agree 
to match the funds awarded.  For example, an estimated $5,000 Project cost could result in 
a $2,500 award from the DDA upon completion and proof that the Applicant had spent at 
least $2,500 on the Project. 

 


	1 12.07.2020 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 11.16.2020 MINUTES.draft
	7a. 3 11.16.2020 ES Affidavit
	7a. 4. 11.17.2020 MINUTES Special Called Joint Meeting
	7a. 5 11.17.2020 ES Affidavit
	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items EDMUNDS AGREEMENT
	7b. 2
	7c. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items LEASES
	7c. 2
	7c. 3
	7c. 4
	7d. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items STAFF APPOINTMENTS
	7d. 2 2021 Staff Appointments
	7e. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	7e. 2 2021 Professional Services
	7f. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items DESIGNATIONS
	7f. 2 2021 Mayor and Council Board Designations
	7g. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items JUDGE AGREEMENT
	7g. 2 Judge Reemsnyder Agreement
	CITY OF DAWSONVILLE INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICE
	AGREEMENT WITH MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE RON REEMSNYDER
	1. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:
	This Agreement does not create and shall not be construed to create an employee, representative, joint venture, or partnership relationship between the City and the Judge. Neither Party is an agent of the other Party for any purpose. Accordingly:
	Judge shall provide Services as an independent contractor, and Judge shall not be considered an employee of the City for any purpose;
	Judge, and Judge’s agents and subcontractors, including, but not limited to any Judges Pro Tempore, shall not be entitled to, and shall not receive from City in connection with Services any workers’ compensation coverage, insurance coverage, pension, ...
	Judge retains sole and exclusive liability and shall withhold and/or pay all taxes and contributions required to be withheld and/or paid under federal and state income tax laws, unemployment compensation acts, social security acts, and all other legis...
	Judge is solely responsible for paying his own business expenses, and expenses will only be reimbursed as set forth in this Agreement; and
	Judge is free to perform services for any other client that does not create a conflict of interest to his service to the City.
	At all times during the term of this Agreement, neither party will function as or represent itself to be the other party or its agent, and no officer, employee, or agent of one party shall hold himself or herself out to be an officer, employee, or age...
	2. TERM OF APPOINTMENT:
	Ronald D. Reemsnyder accepts the appointment of Judge of the Municipal Court of the City in accordance with the provisions of the City Charter and Ordinances as supplemented by this Agreement for a term commencing upon execution of this Agreement and ...
	The Judge shall be, and remain, an attorney admitted to practice law in the State of Georgia. The Judge must also be a citizen of the United States of America and the State of Georgia. The Judge must comply with all other requirements for service as a...
	3. SCOPE OF SERVICES:
	The Judge shall perform all duties legally prescribed for a judicial officer serving as a Judge of a lawfully constituted Municipal Court according to the requirements of the Georgia Constitution, the Official Code of Georgia, the Code of Judicial Con...
	The Judge shall at all times faithfully and to the best of his ability administer activities of the court, assign and hear all cases and fulfill obligations of the Court as established by State or local law, rule, statute, regulation and City ordinance.
	The Judge shall appoint Judges Pro Tempore for vacation, affidavits of prejudice, recusal from a pending case, illness and required judicial continuing education and training. Before appointing a Judge Pro Tempore, the Judge shall confirm that he or s...
	The Judge shall instruct all Judges Pro Tempore concerning procedures and customary sentences in order to promote uniformity to the greatest extent possible, and shall provide a copy of this Agreement to the Judges Pro Tempore and obtain their agreeme...
	4. JUDICIAL INDEPENDENCE AND ADMINISTRATION:
	The Court Clerk shall be appointed by the City Council and shall serve as an At-Will employee of the City. The Court Clerk and all court staff other than the Judge are City employees subject to City rules and regulations. However, they are subject to...
	5. COMPENSATION:
	The Judge will be paid a per diem of $200 per day for all court hearing dates, training dates or other required days of work regardless of the number of hours worked each day.
	6. METHOD OF PAYMENT:
	The Judge, or any Judge Pro Tempore, shall send invoices to the City Manager and payment will be made within 30 days or less.
	7. BENEFITS:
	The Judge is not eligible for any benefits offered by the City to employees.
	9. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION:
	This Agreement shall be administered by the City Manager. Any written notices to be served on either party shall be served or mailed to the following addresses, with a copy by email:
	IF TO THE CITY:   IF TO THE JUDGE:
	Bob Bolz, City Manager  Ronald D. Reemsnyder
	City of Dawsonville   insert address & email
	415 Hwy. 53 East
	Suite 100
	Dawsonville, GA 30534
	citymanager@dawsonville-ga.gov
	10. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT:
	This Agreement may be terminated during the Judge’s term of office as follows:
	11. MERGER AND AMENDMENT:
	This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the City and the Judge with respect to the matters set forth herein, and any prior or contemporaneous understandings are merged herein. This Agreement shall not be modified except by written instrume...
	This Agreement shall be governed under the laws of the State of Georgia, and any dispute regarding this Agreement shall be resolved in Dawson County Superior Court, State of Georgia.
	12. SEVERABILITY
	If any provision of this Agreement or their application to any circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement and their application to other circumstances is not affected.

	7h. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items SAFETY GRANT
	7j. 2. email w. grant amounts
	8. 1. Executive Summary For  FINANCIAL AUDIT PRESENTATION
	9. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items LEASE REVIEW
	10. VAPE LICENSE RENEWAL
	11. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items DDA GRANT
	11. 2 GRANT GUIDELINES



